

Instructions on how to work with Siemens Teamcenter for university purpose

Hagenauer Nathalie

Thesis Mechanical Engineering Bachelor

2023



Mechanical Engineering Bachelor of Science in Engineering

Author	Nathalie Hagenauer	Year	2023
Supervisor	Ari Pikkarainen, D.Sc. (tech.)		
Commissioned by	Arto Jäntti M.Eng.		
Titel of Thesis	Instructions on how to work wi	th Siemens	
	Teamcenter for university purp	ose	
Number of pages	35 + 49		

As part of the implementation of Siemens Teamcenter in the curriculum at Lapland UAS, instructions for students were written. The instructions include how to use the Teamcenter Integration for Autodesk Inventor and SolidWorks and how to work with Siemens Teamcenter Active Workspace.

First, the most important basics of PLM, digital manufacturing, MES, and CAD are described. Scientific reports, books and internet sources found during the literature research served as a basis. The practical part deals with the implementation of the individual Teamcenter integrations at Lapland UAS and the instructions themselves.

The computers in the CAD computer room at Lapland UAS are equipped with the necessary Siemens Teamcenter integrations for Autodesk Inventor and SolidWorks to enable students to work flawlessly with these programs. There are currently no integrations for the Festo MES4 software, but there is a Python script that allows importing images from Teamcenter. The Siemens Teamcenter Active Workspace can be accessed from any computer at Lapland UAS, giving students the opportunity to work with it outside of class. The instructions written during this work are designed so that students who have never worked with the integrations or Active Workspace before can understand and apply the basic functions.

Key words Other information Siemens Teamcenter, Inventor, SolidWorks, PLM, MES The thesis includes written instructions.

CONTENTS

1	INTRO	DDUCTION	6
	1.1	Scope and objective	6
	1.2	Motivation	6
2	PROD	DUCT LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT	8
	2.1	Digital twin	9
	2.2	Siemens Teamcenter	9
3	DIGIT	AL MANUFACTURING	13
4	ΜΑΝι	JFACTURING EXECUTION SYSTEM	15
5	COM	PUTER AIDED DESIGN	18
	5.1	Autodesk Inventor	18
	5.2	SolidWorks	19
6	SIEM	ENS TEAMCENTER IMPLEMENTATION AT THE LAPLAND UAS	21
	6.1	Teamcenter Integration for Autodesk Inventor (TCAI)	21
	6.1.′	User interface	21
	6.1.2	2 Active Workspace	22
	6.1.3	3 File management	22
	6.2	Teamcenter Integration for SolidWorks	23
	6.2.2	I User interface	23
	6.2.2	2 Active workspace	24
	6.2.3	3 File management	24
	6.2.4	Frequent Error	25
	6.3	Festo MES4	28
	6.4	Active Workspace	29
7	RESL	ILTS	32
	7.1	Teamcenter integration for Autodesk Inventor instructions	32
	7.2	Teamcenter integration for SolidWorks	33
	7.3	Siemens Teamcenter Active Workspace	34
8	DISC	JSSION	35
9	BIBLI	OGRAPHY	36
1()APPE	NDICES	39
	Appen	dix 1	39
	Appen	dix 2	55
	Appen	dix 3	71

FOREWORD

I would like to thank FH Technikum Wien and Lapland UAS for giving me the opportunity to participate in the Double Degree Program, and therefore, finishing my bachelor's degree in Kemi, Finland. This was truly a great journey and experience.

I am grateful to Ari for his valuable support throughout my studies. His guidance and advice helped me a lot navigating the challenges of the bachelor process. I would also like to thank Arto for his support and mentorship throughout my bachelor thesis.

Furthermore, I want to acknowledge my study and flatmates for their professional help as well as their social support. Lastly, I would like to thank my family for their great support throughout my studies.

SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS

- CAD Computer Aided Design
- DCS Distributed Control Systems
- ERP Enterprise Resource Planning
- IIoT Industrial Internet of Things
- IoT Internet of Things
- MES Manufacturing Execution System
- PLC Programmable Logical Controllers
- PLM Project Lifecycle Management
- SaaS Software as a Service
- SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
- SOA Service Oriented Architecture
- TCAI Teamcenter Integration for Autodesk Inventor
- UAS University of Applied Science

1 INTRODUCTION

Manufacturing execution systems (MES) and product lifecycle management (PLM) software are crucial components in Industry 4.0, which is a promising employer for Mechanical Engineering graduates. With the automatization line and the Festo MES4 software in the Smart Lab the Lapland UAS has the perfect conditions for the students to understand MES systems. To provide students with insight and knowledge about PLM, Siemens Teamcenter is now also integrated into the Lapland UAS curriculum. Siemens Teamcenter is a product lifecycle management software and accompanies a product from planning to production. The software functions as a connecting element between different programmes, but also between different employees, students, and lecturers.

To use the software in a general and interdisciplinary way, clear instructions on how to import CAD drawings to Siemens Teamcenter and use the Information in the Teamcenter are needed.

1.1 Scope and objective

The purpose of this thesis is to create instructions on how to store CAD-drawings and other information from CAD-environment in Siemens Teamcenter. Furthermore, it will also be explained how to use and manage this data in the Teamcenter. As a result, a full set of instructions for these purposes will be provided.

This work will only contain the instructions for the different software. There will be no work on the Festo smart factory itself.

1.2 Motivation

The integration of Siemens Teamcenter into the Lapland UAS curriculum marks an important step forward in teaching how to streamline and optimize engineering workflows. However, as with any new technology, there is a learning curve that can pose a challenge for both instructors and students.

To address this challenge, this thesis aims to provide a comprehensive set of instructions and guidelines for using Teamcenter in conjunction with popular design software, such as Inventor and SolidWorks. By focusing on the most important functions of Siemens Teamcenter Active Workspace, the thesis seeks to equip instructors with good first instructions to provide for students.

2 PRODUCT LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT

Product Lifecycle Management (PLM) has the purpose to manage a products lifecycle in the most efficient way. (John Stark 2022). Initially, PLM solutions were cad-centric and focused mainly on file and document management. To meet the challenges of globalisation and outsourcing, the programmes expanded regularly. Today's PLM software is strongly oriented towards the Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) model, allowing management without a full IT department. (ORACLE Deutschland 2023)

With bi-directional access to all information stored in the cloud from anywhere at any time, the former barriers of data silos can be removed, the complexity of data collection across supply networks can be addressed, and formerly separate business processes can be connected. All of this results in shorter time to market, better product quality, faster innovation, and reduced costs. (ORACLE Deutschland 2023.)

A product development has five phases, which are not standardised in the industry, but are always very similar in principle. The following is SAP's approach.



Figure 1. Product Lifecycle Management (SAP 2023)

- Concept and design: This is the ideation phase, where the requirements for a product are defined based on the analysis of several factors such as market gaps, customer needs or competitors.
- 2. Development: Together with the necessary tool designs, the detailed design of the product is created. In this phase, the product is validated and analysed, prototypes are developed and tested in practice. This provides the necessary feedback on how the product is being used and what improvements are needed.
- 3. Production and launch: To further develop the product and create a market-ready version, feedback from the pilot project will be used. The production of the new product is scaled up, followed by the market launch, and distribution of the product.
- 4. Service and support: Service and support are offered after the introduction of the new product.
- 5. Retirement: The withdrawal of the product from the market or the possible reintroduction or adoption in a new concept at the end of its life cycle must be regulated. (SAP 2023.)
- 2.1 Digital twin

A digital twin is a digital representation of a physical asset that reflects the behaviour of the object and can be modelled as it is formed, designed, manipulated, and maintained. The virtual copy of the object is created for each step of the product lifecycle. All changes made to the object can be made in real time using PLM software and tracked by all involved. (ORACLE Deutschland 2023.)

2.2 Siemens Teamcenter

Siemens Teamcenter is a versatile and contemporary PLM software suite that has three deployment options (on-premise, cloud, SaaS) for a fast time-to-value and lower cost of ownership. (Siemens Digital Industries Software 2023a). As all parties involved in a project can access the entire documentation and CAD models at any time and from anywhere and thus always have access to the current design, quality is improved, and downstream errors are eliminated. Furthermore, the project can be tracked by stakeholders without the need for multiple applications and databases through a simplified user interface. All information is stored in a central repository, which reduces the IT burden and eliminates the need to search for documents. (Siemens Digital Industries Software 2023b.)

Teamcenter can be based on the two-tier or the four-tier architecture model. As shown in Figure 2 the four-tier architecture model has a client tier, a web-tier, an enterprise-tier, and a resource tier. The two-tier architecture only uses the clienttier and the resource-tier and has therefore less features than the four-tier architecture model. (Siemens 2021.)



Figure 2. Four-tier architecture (PLM Coach 2022)

Client-tier:

The client-tier is responsible for the front-end components or user interface (UI) for the end-user to interact with. It provides the graphical user interface to allow users to perform various tasks such as viewing, creating, modifying, and managing product data and related information within the Teamcenter system. The Client Tier can be accessed through different types of clients, such as desktop applications, web browsers, or mobile devices, depending on the deployment and configuration of Teamcenter in an organization. (Siemens 2021.)

Web-tier:

The Teamcenter web-tier serves as a web application that enables communication between the client tier and enterprise tier, facilitating user access and interaction with Teamcenter through web browsers. It is responsible for providing the user interface and functionalities for accessing and managing product data and related information through web browsers. The web-tier includes features such as web-based search and navigation, data visualization, data input and modification, workflow management, and collaboration tools. (Siemens 2021.)

Enterprise-tier:

The enterprise-tier provides the core functionalities such as data management, security, and integration with other enterprise systems. Additionally it is responsible for collaboration between users and manages user access and permissions. (Siemens 2021.)

Resource-tier:

The resource-tier includes the database, volumes and file servers and is responsible for that the system has the necessary computing resources, storage, and network capabilities. (Siemens 2021.)

Active workspace

The Active Workspace is a web-based user interface provided by Siemens Teamcenter. It is designed to provide users with a modern and intuitive interface for accessing and managing product data and related processes. The Active Workspace allows users to collaborate, view, and interact with product information, documents, and workflows through a web browser, making it accessible from different devices and locations. It provides features such as search, visualization, document management, workflow management, and reporting, among others, to help users efficiently navigate and manage product information within the Teamcenter PLM environment. (Siemens Product Lifecycle Management Software, Inc. 2019.)

As shown in Figure 3 it has a clear structure and is therefore a good introduction to PLM.



Figure 3. Teamcenter active workspace

3 DIGITAL MANUFACTURING

Digital manufacturing uses digital technology to improve and optimise the entire manufacturing process, from product design to marketing and distribution. To improve productivity, fasten the time to market, reduce the cost for manufacturing, various data analytics, software automation and other advanced technologies are used. (Paritala, Manchikatla & Yarlagadda 2017.)

To correspond to each part of the manufacturing process, digital manufacturing can be divided into three types:

Product life cycle: The life cycle of a product starts with the design phase, followed by sourcing, production, and customer service management. At each stage, the use of data analytics can help in monitoring and making necessary changes that can have an impact on the overall life cycle. (Coursera 2022.)

Smart factory: Real-time data about machine functions is communicated to workers through smart machines and sensors. This feedback connects the operations teams responsible for machine monitoring to the IT teams responsible for back-end systems. Both teams use business intelligence tools to analyse, track, and enhance performance. (Coursera 2022.)

Value chain management: To satisfy customer demands, let inventories stay lean and to let processes be integrated, chain management minimizes resources and continuously assesses value at every stage of the chain. (Coursera 2022.)

As shown in Figure 4, in digital manufacturing the suppliers, logistics, and production site are all connected with the help of a cloud-based system. This connection helps to make the whole process faster and more efficient. (Industrie 2025 2023.)



Figure 4. Digital Manufacturing (Karavan Advisory Enterprises 2023)

The goal is for the system to be able to control itself. To achieve this, every element in the production chain must be connected to each other, all components must be digitally recorded, and sufficient sensors must be installed in machines. this is referred to as the internet of things. (Jann Raveling 2020.)

Internet of Things

The Internet of Things (IoT) consists of individual physical devices that are connected in a network and can thus exchange information and data. To make this possible, the devices are equipped with certain software, technology, and sensors. The range of these devices starts by ordinary household objects and ends by sophisticated industrial tools.

In the industrial sector the technology, instrumentation and control of sensors and devices which include cloud technologies are referred to Industrial IoT (IIoT). (ORACLE 2023.)

4 MANUFACTURING EXECUTION SYSTEM

A manufacturing execution system is a dynamic and comprehensive software system, which documents, controls, tracks and monitors the process of manufacturing goods. It starts with the raw product and accompanies it until the finished product. Furthermore, MES acts as an intermediary between different sites, vendors and plants and it can be linked in with the controllers, equipment and enterprise applications. (SAP 2020; Siemens Digital Industries Software 2022)

MES started out as a connection between the shop floor and the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP). ERP contains modules for inventory control, cost accounting, production planning and demand forecasting. It collects and integrates the information of these modules on a daily, weekly, or monthly basis from the shop floor and other sectors and this is too inaccurate to respond to every transaction on the shop floor. As a solution MES was developed to connect the shop floor with the ERP. By combining real time information on materials, operations and processes from the controls, machines and individuals on the shop floor with provisionally production plans from the ERP, MES creates a detailed operating plan. (Shojaeinasab et al. 2022.)



Figure 5. Manufacturing execution system (Shojaeinasab et al. 2022)

In Figure 5 you can see that the MES system is the main production management tool that provides the bidirectional link between the shop floor control/automation layer and the enterprise planning layer. From a bottom-top view, the MES receives data from actuators and sensors on the status of the shop floor which are monitored by supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) systems such

as distributed control systems (DCSs), programmable logical controllers (PLCs) and other smart devices. To meet the decision-making needs of the ERP system at the enterprise planning layer, the granular information with a limited scope generated by the SCADA system is abstracted to the required level. The abstracted information such as statuses of orders is used by the ERP system to decide on the release of upcoming planned orders. In a top to down view of the management pyramid, data on the planned orders for the MES is provided by the ERP system. Then the MES creates a detailed schedule for the execution in the shop floor. (Shojaeinasab et al. 2022.)

Festo MES4

To familiarise the Lapland UAS students with MES, there is a Festo teaching assembly system with several individual modules in the smart lab. This is controlled with the Festo MES4 software.

Festo's MES4 software is designed for smart factories and utilizes an ACCESS database. This system was specifically created for use in learning factories and meets all Industry 4.0 requirements. With transparent interfaces and open databases, it offers a strong foundation for learning and experimentation. The Service Oriented Architecture (SOA) of the MES4 is not rigidly structured hierarchically, enabling production cells to retrieve information independently if required. (Festo Didactic SE 2015.)

de constru			
Data Tools Windows Orders He	Ho.		- 5 .
Production Control	- Westerland		
Order Management	S workpan		
CP Quality Management	No. Duration 0	Work Plan Number: 3013 Name: Test palet take in part Type: production	
1998 Master Data	800 Ryhmä 1 24-11	Description: Test palet take in part	
Pads	808 Poron valmistus 820 RYHMÄ 3 24-11	Time (s): 57 Electric trivergy (Wa): 3024 Compressed Av (SL): 0,331	
E Work Plane	830 Rytmä 4 24-11	10 1	
9th Resources	840 Hymna 5 24-11 850 RYHMA 6 24-11	213 release a defined pat	
- Occupiers	860 Ryhmä jyrsjä 861 Ryhmä 4	1 🗄 👋	
	862 Ryhmä 3	20 0	
Customers	864 Ryhmä 1 LA	116 pick by light	
Cutines	865 Ryhmä 2 LA 866 Ryhmä 3 LA		
Maintenance	867 Ryhmä 4_LA	30 0	
	1200 P2 - black product no PCB	201 feed back cover from back	
	1201 P2 black product no PCB vision 1214 P - black product ocb both fuses	nagazne pag	
	1215 P -black prod pcb 2 fuses vision	40 0	
	2000 P - black product with turned part	40 7 111 pressing with force to a	
	3001 Testi Mika 3002 Testi Mika 2		
	8000 Jannina ja Bla-Mata 9002 Tuomat is luonatan	50 0	
	8004 JHe_MMa	50 1	
	S006 lida ja Ekas S000 standard maintenance order	zio stopper 1	
	9001 Cover out, back cover on, check, turn pat 9010 cover back and colorier		
	9011 810 Pytmä 2 24-11		
	9012 Leon 9013 Test pallet take in part		
	C Atd Work Plan	The life I B Save	
Marine .			
actual orders			
Doctor States			
Special Operator Messages: 0			FESTO

Figure 6. Festo MES4 example workplan

5 COMPUTER AIDED DESIGN

Computer aided design (CAD) helps the user to realise complex models in the field of metalworking, woodworking and 3D printing. It can handle a lot of calculations and helps to visualise single parts or whole assemblies. Another advantage of CAD programs is, that a design can be changed at any time afterwards without having to redraw the whole part or assembly. (Shivegowda, Boonyasopon, Rangappa & Siengchin 2022.)

CAD software focus on the representation of geometric models with all the necessary background information, such as the structural organisation processes and geometry modelling operations. To be able to present complex surfaces, solids and curves in the virtual environment, different technologies like geometry definition, interpolation, transformations, and approximation are needed. Furthermore, CAD provides the necessary base to perform model preparation and engineering tasks, like meshing operations. Design rules provide specific strategies and methods to be followed in the design process depending on the type of product and the desired characteristics of the model. CAD also provides the maintenance and preparation of geometrical data for simulation processes and subsequent calculation. For the generation of derivation of geometrically simplified simulation modes or approximated geometry models by triangulation CAD serves as a base. (Hirz, Dietrich, Gfrerrer & Lang 2013.)

5.1 Autodesk Inventor

Autodesk Inventor is a CAD software and part of the Autodesk solution for Digital Prototyping. It provides engineering and design solutions for 3D mechanical simulation, documentation, visualization, and design. 2D and 3D data can be integrated in one design environment to simulate a product and its form, function and fit before it is built. (Autodesk 2023; IMAGINiT 2023.)

With its freeform, direct, and parametric modelling tools, Inventor allows users to design products in a variety of ways that suit their preferences and workflows. The software's digital prototyping capabilities help to reduce development costs, shorten time-to-market, and ensure that high-quality products are created. By simulating and testing products digitally, users can identify and resolve potential

issues early in the design process, minimizing the need for physical prototypes and reducing the overall cost of product development. (Farnell 2016.)



Figure 7. Autodesk Inventor

5.2 SolidWorks

SolidWorks is a professional 2D and 3D computer-aided design software package that allows engineers, designers, and architects to create and modify designs of various mechanical components, assemblies, and systems. It utilizes a solid modelling approach that involves the creation of three-dimensional models by combining basic geometrical shapes such as cubes, cylinders, spheres, and cones, among others. These basic shapes can be further modified, stretched, and transformed to create more complex models that accurately represent real-world objects. (Formlabs 2023.)

The software provides a user-friendly interface with a variety of powerful tools for creating and manipulating designs. These tools include sketching, surfacing, sheet metal design, weldments, simulation, and animation. SolidWorks also offers a range of features for collaboration and data management, including the ability to create and manage bills of materials, track design changes, and share

designs with team members and clients. (Formlabs 2023; Kai Inge Midtgård Rokstad 2022.)

Welcome - SOLIDWORKS	? X	
Home Recent Learn Alerts	Log In	
New	Advanced	
Recent Documents	View all	RKS
Recent Folders View all Hi bims =D Crit/sers/shagenas/Desktop/Hi i bims =D	Resources Image: Construction of the second seco	2020
Arrow keys rotate the model. Ctrl + Arrow keys pan the model. Alt	+ Arrow keys rotate the model parallel to the viewing plane. <	

Figure 8. SolidWorks

6 SIEMENS TEAMCENTER IMPLEMENTATION AT THE LAPLAND UAS

To be able to use Siemens Teamcenter in SolidWorks and Inventor, there are software integrations for the respective programmes which must be installed on each computer with the CAD programmes. These are currently installed on the computers in the machine and electrical CAD room (1136) and on the Computer in the SmartLab (1171).

There is no such integration for the Festo MES4 software yet, but a python script to import pictures from Teamcenter to MES4 was written as a part of a bachelor thesis. The script was written with the local version of Siemens Teamcenter.

Teamcenter can be accessed via the Active Workspace. This is supported in all browsers and can be accessed from all computers on campus. Teamcenter is cloud-based and can therefore also be accessed from external computers with the right VPN connection. However, this VPN connection is only accessible to teaching staff.

6.1 Teamcenter Integration for Autodesk Inventor (TCAI)

6.1.1 User interface

With the Teamcenter Integration for Inventor, it is possible to access the Teamcenter in Inventor. This allows the user to access data in Teamcenter and save drawings, assemblies, and parts directly in Teamcenter.

In Figure 9 the user interface is shown. Number 1 is the new Teamcenter menu, which is added to the Inventor ribbon, number 2 is the TCAI - Home Browser and number 3 marks the TCAI - File Status Browser.



Figure 9. Teamcenter Integration in Inventor

6.1.2 Active Workspace

With the integration of Active Workspace, parts can also be added directly to a workflow, or the Active Workspace browser can be opened. To use the Active Workspace integration with TCAI proper configurations are required, which were not yet installed at the Lapland UAS. But this is only an extension and not necessary to use Teamcenter in inventor.

6.1.3 File management

The data stored in Teamcenter can be accessed from the TCAI Home Browser, as shown in Figure 10. From there, all parts, assemblies, and drawings saved in the Inventor file format can be opened. In the data master tree, all versions of a part are displayed, and each can be opened and edited. In addition, this interface offers a preview of the selected part or assembly, allowing for quick and easy access to visual information of the component. To save the assembly or part being worked on in Teamcenter, the Save/Create button in the Teamcenter menu located in the ribbon bar can be used. This feature enables users to store their work in Teamcenter regardless of whether the part was initiated before or after logging into Teamcenter.



Figure 10. TCAI-Home

6.2 Teamcenter Integration for SolidWorks

6.2.1 User interface

With the Teamcenter Integration for SolidWorks, users can seamlessly access Teamcenter directly from within the SolidWorks environment. Figure 11 shows the Teamcenter user interfaces in SolidWorks. Number 1 is the Teamcenter Ribbon Bar, which is only displayed when a model is open, and number 2 shows the Teamcenter task pane.



Figure 11. Teamcenter integration for SolidWorks

6.2.2 Active workspace

Once the Active Workspace integration is installed a third tab in the Teamcenter task pane will show and the user can work directly on an Active Workspace interface. However, to fully utilize the Active Workspace integration with TCAI, proper configurations must be installed, which are not yet available at Lapland UAS. It is important to note that the Active Workspace integration is an optional extension and is not required for using Teamcenter with SolidWorks.

6.2.3 File management

To open a part or assembly from Teamcenter in SolidWorks, the Open button in either the Teamcenter ribbon bar or the Teamcenter Task pane can be used. This will cause an additional window to appear, as shown in Figure 12, where the desired part or assembly can be selected for opening. Unlike in Inventor, where the entire Teamcenter data is always displayed in the Teamcenter task pane, only the files of the current workspace are displayed in the sidebar in SolidWorks.

Search						Summary	
Enter the Item ID to search			🔍 🔻 Ar	dvanced Search	+7		
Object	Revision	Document	Checked Out?	Release Status			
	A						
Configure		-	·	• •		Item ID Model Name Item Type Revision Item Name Dataset Type Document Checked Out? Release Status	Smiley1 Smiley1 Item 8 smiley1 SolidWorks part [SolidWorks model Smiley
Filters Required							
Revision Configuration Latest Working					\sim	<	2
Workspace					~	Options Open Mode:	Default 🗸 🗸

Figure 12. Teamcenter open in SolidWorks

When saving a part or assembly in Teamcenter, two scenarios may occur:

- 1. If the user was already logged in to Teamcenter and in the appropriate workspace when working on the part, the part can simply be saved by clicking the Save button in the Teamcenter ribbon bar.
- 2. If the user started working on the part before logging in to Teamcenter, the data must be imported to the current workspace before it can be saved in Teamcenter. Once this step is completed, the saving process is the same as in the first scenario.

6.2.4 Frequent Error

When the user creates a new model, the Teamcenter Alert in Figure 13 may show up. It says the creation failed because an input was not recognized as a valid DateTime. This error is caused by the Teamcenter when it cannot read the Time format of the computer. This is a common error and therefore there are several solutions in the Teamcenter Support Center.



Figure 13. Teamcenter Alert invalid DateTime

Solution 1: Change time format of the computer to Spanish (Mexican)

The first solution suggested to change the time format of the computer to Spanish (Mexican). The time format can be changed in the Computer Settings in the menu *Time and Language* \rightarrow *Date, time & regional formatting*. There, the Current format can be chosen out of a drop-down list. After changing the format SolidWorks needs to be closed and opened again.

This not only changes the time format, and language in the date of the computer, but also the language in SolidWorks to Spanish. As shown in Figure 14 this did not solve the problem, however the Alert was more specific by stating, that Teamcenter cannot recognise the word starting at index 20.



Figure 14. Teamcenter Alert invalid DateTime, time format Spanish (Mexican)

Solution 2: Disable all Add-Ins

After changing the Time format back to English (Finland) another solutions suggestion was tried. The idea was to disable all Add-Ins from SolidWorks itself. To disable the Add-Ins the user clicks on the *Options* button, as marked in Figure 15 and selects Add-Ins from the drop-down menu.



Figure 15. SolidWorks Options drop-down menu

In the Add-Ins menu, as shown in Figure 16, all Add-Ins are being disabled by removing the ticks in the boxes on the left side. Afterwards SolidWorks is being closed and started again. This solution also did not work and the original error (Figure 13) was shown again.

Active Add-ins	Start Up	Last Load Time	1
SOLIDWORKS Premium Add-ins	.35		
CircuitWorks			
FeatureWorks		5225	
🗌 🌑 PhotoView 360			
🔲 🍓 ScanTo3D		533	
🔲 🕰 SOLIDWORKS Design Checker		< 1s	
SOLIDWORKS Motion		5722	
SOLIDWORKS Routing			
SOLIDWORKS Simulation	\checkmark	1s	
SOLIDWORKS Toolbox Library			
SOLIDWORKS Toolbox Utilities		5225	
SOLIDWORKS Utilities		3 76	
TolAnalyst		5 <u>45</u>	
SOLIDWORKS Add-ins			
Autotrace		8.00	
🗉 Other Add-ins	12		ľ
🔲 🛃 3DCloudByMe Plug-in		5 <u>88</u>	1
			- 2

Figure 16. SolidWorks Add-Ins

Solution 3: Change time format to German or Russian

This solution was suggested for a different error, but it was tried as it closely resembled the first proposed solution. The idea was to change the time format to German or Russian. Due to the language skills in German, it was tried with the German date format, and it worked. This was not a good solution for the finish students since the SolidWorks interface was now also in German. So afterwards the time format was changed to Finnish (Finland) and it also worked with that.

In conclusion, to solve the problem, the time format must be changed in one of the formats mentioned above, then a component must be saved in SolidWorks Teamcenter, and afterwards the time format can be changed again to the desired format. This is not an optimal solution, Teamcenter itself says, but until now there is no other solution for this problem.

6.3 Festo MES4

A python script is used to export pictures from Teamcenter to the MES4 software. In the program, the Teamcenter directory is accessed, and a csv file stored in it is read out. In this csv file, short descriptions, and the names of the images to be imported are stored. The images are stored in the same directory as the csv file and can thus be found and imported into the MES4 directory. The images can then be accessed in the MES4 software. The exact python script can be found in the bachelor thesis from Henri Valta. (Valta 2022.)

The program was tested, and basically worked, except for the correct storage location, because for the python script a local version of Siemens Teamcenter was used. For this work the browser version of Siemens Teamcenter is used and therefore the program cannot be used.

6.4 Active Workspace

In the Active Workspace the user can either search for files with the search function or directly find them in the Folders. There, all Folders the user has access to are listed. When opening a folder first the contents will be listed on the right side, shown in Figure 17.

interingent criticities interingent								
Utt with Summary V= Selection V Select	Overview Audit Logs							
SolidWorks Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau)	▼ PROPERTIES							
Date Modified: 04-Apr-2023 14:07	Name:		Inventor					
Newstuff Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 20-0 nr-2023 19:41	Description: Owner:		to import and export files from in nhagenau (nhagenau)	wentor				
Mailbox Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau)	Group ID:		dba					
Date Modified: 04-Apr-2023 14:06								
Inventor Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 21-Apr-2023 14:30	Dentroite Selection V Selection	ect					⊡ ^{Buport} D	🗄 Paste 🕀 Add to
dateien Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau)	Object ¢	Type ©	Checked-Out @	Owner 🗢	Group ID 🗢	Date Modified \$	Release Status 🌣	6
Date Modified: 20-Apr-2023 18:56	6 000059/A;1-stoppel1	Item Revision		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	21-Apr-2023		
active workspace	🚯 cube1.1/A;1-cube 1.1	Item Revision		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	21-Apr-2023		
Date Modified: 04-Apr-2023 16:13	6 000063/8;1-cube2	Item Revision		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	21-Apr-2023		
	6 000061/A;1-buttoncube1	Item Revision		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	21-Apr-2023		
	G COOCO I/AC I*BUILDINCUBET	Item Revision		nnagenau (nnagenau)	004	211401-2025		

Figure 17. Active Workspace Folder overview

Now each part can be copied, downloaded, or opened directly in Inventor, or SolidWorks with the right integration. This integration needs to be installed separately for Inventor and SolidWorks and is not yet integrated in the Lapland UAS.

The parts can also be opened in the Active Workspace to get more detailed information. In Figure 18 the Overview section of a part is shown with some basic information on the part and a preview.



Figure 18. Active Workspace Part overview

The user can also see if and in which assembly a part is used, as shown in Figure 19 in the Where Used section. In the Attachment section, the part itself is deposited.

Implementation If SID IN STRUCTORES Implementation Configured by dichal Revision Rule : Latest Working Implementation Npt Record Status Implementation Npt Record Status Owner Implementation Npt Record Status Owner Implementation Npt Record Status Owner Implementation Record Status Owner Implementation Implementation Record Status Owner	smillpystand Revision: A
Instrume Table State Section 8 Section 9	millegrassembly1 Assembly Revision A Market Revision A Market Rev
Similary 1 Similary 1 Societion: 8 CONTEXTS C	smilly1 Section: 8
Image: source Date Status Date Status Owner O	Type ♥ Release Status ♥ Date Released ♥ Owner ♥
Oper + Type 0 Release Status 0 Date Released 0 Owner 0 • REFERENCES Image: Status of the status of th	Object • Type © Release Satus © Date Released © Owner ©
☐ have document √ share □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ 0 get + 7 yer 0 Release Startur 0 Date Released 0 Owner 0 □	▼ REFERENCES
Object + Type \$ Release Status \$ Date Released \$ Owner \$	\equiv here $\sim \frac{5 \text{Motor}}{Motor} \sim \frac{5 \text{Mot}}{M}$ \oplus \oplus
	Object + Type \$ Release Status \$ Date Released \$ Owner \$
Assem2 SolidWorks assembly nhagenau(nhagenau)	Assem2 SolidWorks assembly nhagenau(hhagenau)
Assem2/A-V/ew BOMView Revision nhagenau(nhagenau)	Assem2/A-View BOMView Revision nhapenau (nhapenau)
smilystand Item nhagenau (nhagenau)	smileystand Item nhagenau/

Figure 19. Active Workspace Part Where Used

If there were several versions or revisions made from a part these can be seen in the History section shown in Figure 20, where the user can also download the older version of a part or an assembly.

REVISION HISTORY								
able V=Selection V	/ Select All							Export Di Passe
Object 0	Release Status @	Date Released ©	Owner 0	Date Modified 👻				6
000063/8;1-cube2			nhagenau (nhagenau)	21-Apr-2023				
000063/A;1-cube2			nhagenau (nhagenau)	21-Apr-2023				
HANGE HISTORY								
								Et to
Solution Item ©	Impacted Item	Authorizing Change	Closure ©	Maturity 0	Disposition ©	Incorporates Chang Incorporated by	Incorporated into @	Incorporated Statu @
	imported term +							
	(Loo. Constant	
	E							
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •							
	4			1				
	4							

Figure 20. Active Workspace Part History

7 RESULTS

7.1 Teamcenter integration for Autodesk Inventor instructions

The instructions are a step-by-step guide for students, who have not used the Teamcenter integration for Autodesk Inventor before. The instructions start by explaining how to log into Teamcenter, followed by the file management and closing with how to save files to Teamcenter. Following the detailed structure is listed:

- 1. Log in
- 2. File Management
 - 2.1. Open Files
 - 2.2. Place parts in assembly
- 3. Save Files
 - 3.1. Save/Create
 - 3.2. Save As New Revision
 - 3.3. Save As New Revision

Since file management and opening files requires a different approach than saving data, the instructions have been further divided into these two main headings next to the log in section. The integration is already very well adapted to the Inventor environment and can therefore be used easily with a basic knowledge of Autodesk Inventor. The complete instructions can be found in Appendix 0.

7.2 Teamcenter integration for SolidWorks

The guide is written in such a way that students who have not worked with the Teamcenter integration for SolidWorks before are guided step by step from logging in to saving data and are introduced to the integration. The manual is divided into a short explanation of the log in, followed by a description of file management and the opening of files, then the saving of files, which differs from the approach to file management, and finally how to solve a frequently occurring error is explained. The exact table of contents is listed below, and the complete manual can be found in Appendix 0.

- 1. Log in
- 2. File Management
 - 2.1. Open from Teamcenter
 - 2.2. Open files not saved in Teamcenter
 - 2.3. Make/save new part
 - 2.4. Place parts in assembly
- 3. Save Files
- 4. Frequent Error

7.3 Siemens Teamcenter Active Workspace

The instructions serve as an introduction to the use of Siemens Teamcenter Active Workspace and explains the most important functions for students step by step. The instructions have been divided into three chapters: Log in, user interface and file management. The user interface of Active Workspace has been explained, with the use of direct screenshots to demonstrate it clearly. As Active workspace relies on clearly described and graphically represented commands, for the file management, also a lot of screenshots were used to give a good overview of the topic. The hole Instruction can be found in Appendix 0.

8 DISCUSSION

In summary, it can be said that the development of the instructions for the Teamcenter integration for Autodesk Inventor worked very well, as there was already prior knowledge of how to use Autodesk Inventor. For the development of the instructions for the Teamcenter integration for SolidWorks, it was first necessary to learn how to use SolidWorks itself to be able to work with the extension in the programme and to prepare the instructions accordingly. Furthermore, an error with the time format occurs regularly with this extension, the cause and solution of which had to be worked out.

While gathering information for the MES4 extension, it was discovered that there is still no official Teamcenter extension for this software. For the MES4 software, during a bachelor thesis carried out at Lapland UAS in 2022, a python script was written with which images can be imported from Teamcenter into the MES4 software. In this work, however, the student did not work with the browser application of Siemens Teamcenter, Active Workspace, with which the future students will work, but with the locally installed Teamcenter version. Therefore, this solution is not applicable for future teaching and no instructions for the process were written.

For the siemens Teamcenter active workspace development, the difficulty at first was to find suitable supporting material for me to understand the basic principle, because at first, I had no access to the data of the official Siemens Teamcenter support center, and the publicly available information was all out of date. Once this problem was solved, the programme was quickly learned, and the manual written.

In summary, the Teamcenter integrations for Autodesk Inventor and SolidWorks already work well, but small enhancements, as mentioned in chapters 6.1 and 6.2, should be installed for both to make the process even more user-friendly.

For Teamcenter Active Workspace, it would be beneficial for the students if it were possible to access the browser application from outside the university to be able to access the data stored in it at any time.

9 BIBLIOGRAPHY

Coursera, 2022. Digital Manufacturing: Definition and Examples. Accessed 19 April 2023 https://www.coursera.org/articles/digital-manufacturing.

Farnell, 2016. Autodesk® Inventor® mechanical design software takes you beyond 3D to Digital Prototyping, enabling you to design, visualize, simulate and make great products. Accessed 20 April 2023 https://www.farnell.com/ datasheets/2000034.pdf.

Festo Didactic SE, 2015. Industrie 4.0 Qualifizierung für die Fabrik der Zukunft. Accessed 20 April 2023 https://www.festo.com/de/de/e/technische-bildung/ bildungskonzepte/highlights/lernfabriken/cp-systeme-umfassende-i4-0lernfabriken-id_32122/.

Formlabs, 2023. Choosing the Best 3D CAD Software: A Comprehensive Guide. Accessed 20 April 2023 https://formlabs.com/eu/blog/cad-software/.

Hirz, M., Dietrich, W., Gfrerrer, A. and Lang, J. 2013. Modeling Techniques in CAD. Integrated Computer-Aided Design in Automotive Development, pp. 241–308. Accessed 3 May 2023 https://link-1springer-1com-

10003422203fd.han.technikum-wien.at/chapter/10.1007/978-3-642-11940-8_4.

IMAGINIT, 2023. Autodesk Inventor Professional. Accessed 27 March 2023 https://www.imaginit.com/software/autodesk-products/inventor.

Industrie 2025, 2023. Was ist Industrie 4.0? Accessed 19 April 2023 https:// www.industrie2025.ch/wissen-industrie-40/was-ist-industrie-40.

2023. Inventor Software | Autodesk. Accessed 27 March 2023 https:// www.autodesk.com/products/inventor/overview?term=1-YEAR&tab= subscription.

Jann Raveling, 2020. Was ist Industrie 4.0? Die Definition von Digitalisierung. Accessed 19 April 2023 https://www.wfb-bremen.de/de/page/stories/ digitalisierung-industrie40/was-ist-industrie-40-eine-kurze-erklaerung. John Stark. 2022. Product Lifecycle Management (Volume 1): *21st Century*

Paradigm for Product Realisation, Springer Nature Switzerland AG.

Kai Inge Midtgård Rokstad, 2022. What is SOLIDWORKS? Accessed 20 April 2023 https://www.technia.com/blog/what-is-solidworks/.
Karavan Advisory Enterprises, 2023. Digital Manufacturing. Accessed 19 April 2023 https://karavanenterprises.com/digital-manufacturing/.

ORACLE, 2023. What is the Internet of Things (IoT)? Accessed 19 April 2023 https://www.oracle.com/internet-of-things/what-is-iot/.

ORACLE Deutschland, 2023. Was ist eine PLM-Software? Accessed 14 April 2023 https://www.oracle.com/de/scm/product-lifecycle-management/what-is-plm/.

Paritala, P. K., Manchikatla, S. and Yarlagadda, P. K. 2017. Digital Manufacturing- Applications Past, Current, and Future Trends, pp. 982–991. DOI: 10.1016/j.proeng.2017.01.250.

PLM Coach, 2022. Teamcenter PLM Architecture. Accessed 18 April 2023 https://plmcoach.com/teamcenter-plm-architecture/.

SAP. 2020. What is an MES (manufacturing execution system)?, 2020 [Online]https://www.sap.com/insights/what-is-mes-manufacturing-executionsystem.html. Accessed 22 March 2023.

SAP. 2023. Was ist Product Lifecycle Management (PLM)?, 2023 [Online]https://www.sap.com/germany/insights/what-is-product-lifecyclemanagement.html. Accessed 3 April 2023.

Shivegowda, M. D., Boonyasopon, P., Rangappa, S. M. and Siengchin, S. 2022. A Review on Computer-Aided Design and Manufacturing Processes in Design and Architecture, pp. 3973–3980. DOI: 10.1007/s11831-022-09723-w.

Shojaeinasab, A., Charter, T., Jalayer, M., Khadivi, M., Ogunfowora, O., Raiyani, N., Yaghoubi, M. and Najjaran, H. 2022. Intelligent manufacturing execution systems: A systematic review, pp. 503–522. Accessed 22 March 2023. DOI: 10.1016/j.jmsy.2022.01.004.

Siemens, 2021. Teamcenter Rapid Start 13.2.

Siemens Digital Industries Software. 2022. What is a Manufacturing Execution System (MES), 22 June [Online]https://www.plm.automation.siemens.com/global/en/our-story/glossary/manufacturing-execution-systems-mes/38072. Accessed 22 March 2023.

Siemens Digital Industries Software, 2023a. Cloud PLM | Siemens Teamcenter X. Accessed 18 April 2023 https://plm.sw.siemens.com/en-US/teamcenter/ teamcenter-x-cloud-plm/.

Siemens Digital Industries Software, 2023b. PLM for Component Manufacturers | Siemens Software. Accessed 18 April 2023 https://

www.plm.automation.siemens.com/global/en/industries/small-medium-business/ plm-for-component-manufacturers.html.

Siemens Product Lifecycle Management Software, Inc., 2019. Active Workspace 3.4 Bereitstellung.

Valta, H., 2022. Virtuaalikaksosen joustava käyttö opetusympäristössähttps:// www.theseus.fi/handle/10024/750860. 10 APPENDICES

Appendix 1

Instructions for Siemens Teamcenter integration for Autodesk Inventor



Nathalie Hagenauer

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	LOG	IN	41
2	FILE	MANAGEMENT	44
	2.1	Open Files	44
	2.2	Place parts in assembly	46
3	SAVE	FILES	48
	3.1	Save/Create	49
	3.2	Save As New Revision	52
	3.3	Save As New Item	54

1. Log in

In Figure 21 the Inventor interface with the Teamcenter ribbon menu is shown. To sign in to Teamcenter and get access to the data, the user clicks the *Login* button in the upper left corner, as marked in Figure 21.

3 · 🗁 月	l ⇔ • ⇔ • 6	} ∓		Autodesk Invent	or Professional 2021		•	Search H	Help & Commands	& Sign In	- 🕞 🕐 -	-	C
Get Starte	ed Tools Col	laborate Teamcente	r 🖃 •										
ogin ser settings paout	home 🖗 Teamcenter	Save/Create Save As New Revi Save As New Item	Save Silent	Check In All •	Cancel Checkout All •	Synchronize	 Refresh Clear Cache Manager 	Prefe	erences p ut				
in/Logout	Browsers	Sa	ve	Ch	eck-In/Out	Synchronize	Local Cache	Opti	ions				
									Elio Elio	Reset	Maximize Recent	1 - 1	۵
							01 ()						
lew					¢ -	Projects	Snortcuts	File	Details				
						Default			Name	Default			
						Inventor Elect	rical Project		Туре	Single User		_	
2		Part	<u> 1</u>	Asse	nbly				Location	C:\Users\Pub 2021\Default.	lic\Documents\Autodesk\l ipj	nventor	
									Workspace	(None)			
9		rawing		Presen	tation				Workgroup Search Paths	(None)			
									Libraries	(None)			ĺ
									Frequently Used	(None)			
	R	set Filters	Pinned [0 F	iles] 🔻									
Project Acti All F File Type All Part Part Pres Pres	ive Project Recent Docs es ts eemblies wings sentations		000061.iam	000065.iam	000064.ipt	000063.ipt	ta cube1_1.ip	R R	¢3 000059-stoppel1.ipt	stoppe	ti.jpt		
Rec Date Nan	cently Opened le Modified me												

Figure 21. Inventor interface not signed in

By clicking on the *Login* Button, the Teamcenter TCCS Login window will pop up as shown in Figure 22. The user can log in by filling in the User ID and Password, the Group and Role field stay empty, and then click login.



Figure 22. Teamcenter TCCS Login

It can occur that the warning shown in Figure 23 appears, however this should not affect the work and the user can click OK to continue.



Figure 23. Folder conflict warning

In Figure 24 the logged in user interface is shown. Number 1 is the Teamcenter menu, number 2 is the Home Browser and number 3 marks the File Status Browser.



Figure 24. Inventor Teamcenter logged in

2. File Management

In the Teamcenter Home interface parts, assemblies, drawings, or presentations can be opened. This can be seen in Figure 25 and is opened by clicking the *Home* button marked in Figure 25.

I 🗅 • 🗁 🗄	l ⇔ + ⇔ • 🟠 ed Teek Celli	₩ where the termination	-	Autod	lesk Inventor Profe	ssional 2021			 Search Help & Commands 	<u>Q</u> Sign In	- 🛱 😗 -	- 🗆 ×
Login Login/Logout	Home Teamcenter Browsers	Save/Create Save As New Revision Save Save Save Save Save Save Save Save	Save Silent	🎒 Check li (춘) Check G	n All • Dut All • 🕼 Ge Check-In/O	ancel Checkout All + et Latest Version All + Dut	Synchronize	Refresh Clear Clear Cache Mana Local Cache	Preferences Help F About Options			=
New	Part Drawing EDocumer (Rec Ver Project Second Docs Ses Second Docs		Assembly Presentation Exact subsection Unpinned (D F Unpinned)	transformed a service of the service	Projects Default Inventor Elect	Tites Large Smo	Reset M M M M	using Windows Ex	Teamenter - Inne X minageman (rhagema) - sbaDBA - U Here Earch Depet Manageman (rhagema) - sbaDBA - U Manageman (rhagema) Manageman (rhagema) Stadie workspace Stadie workspace	atest Working	R Name Hone Mabox Hentiff SoldWea dateen dateen	E Descripti nhagen for import and here i uit creet to import and é
G × For Help, press F1								=			ſ	0 0

Figure 25. Inventor Teamcenter Home how to open

2.1. Open Files

In Teamcenter Home all folders on which the user has access to, are listed and files can be shown in the preview by clicking on them once and opened by clicking on them twice.



Figure 26. Inventor Teamcenter Home

If there are more versions (revisions) of one part or assembly, these will be listed in the data tree as shown in Figure 27.



Figure 27. Part revision

When a file is open, the user can open the File Status browser by clicking the *plus* in the Model browser as marked in Figure 28 and selecting the *Teamcenter* – *File Status*.



Figure 28. Open Teamcenter - File Status

In the File Status browser, the information of the currently opened component is displayed. (Figure 29)

file Name	Name	R	Description	Owner
🖃 📄 🔔 000061.iam	000061/A	A	1. assembly	nhagenau (nhagenau
🔥 🤔 000059-stoppel	000059/A	A	stoppel and part of ass	embly buttoncube enau
🔥 🛃 cube1_1.ipt	cube1.1/B	В	try for instructions	nhagenau (nhagenau



2.2. Place parts in assembly

To place a part from Teamcenter in the current assembly the user has to rightclick on the part to be placed to open a drop-down menu. In this Place from Teamcenter as marked in Figure 10 can be clicked to place the part in the assembly.



Figure 30. Paste from Teamcenter

3. Save Files

There are four different saving commands in the Teamcenter Save group in the menu bar as marked in Figure 31.



Figure 31. Teamcenter Save group

Save/Create: To save new Inventor Parts, assemblies, drawings, or presentation files to Teamcenter, the save window will open to set the properties and settings. **Save silent:** This option will save modified components to Teamcenter without opening the save window, so if no property changes are made this command can be used. It is also useful to save work periodically during an ongoing CAD session.

Save As Revision: With this option a new revision of the selected component will be saved. In the save window the properties and settings can be set.

Save As New Item: To make a copy of the selected item with a new item ID. The save window will open to configure the properties and settings.

Note: The part must be saved as a New Revision or New Item before changes are made, because otherwise the original part will also be changed.

3.1. Save/Create

If a component is still being created and has not yet been saved in Teamcenter, all Check-In/Out and Save options are greyed out except for *Save/Create*, as the part must first be saved in Teamcenter to be able to execute these options. (Figure 32)

File	3D Mode	Sketch An	notate Inspect Tools	Manage Vie	w Environments	Get Started Collaborate	Teamcenter 💽) •	
💱 Log	in	🐎 Home	Save/Create	Save Silent	🗂 Check In All 🔹	👔 Cancel Checkout All	- 🔊 Synchronize	酸 Refresh	Preferences
St Use	r Settings	Teamcenter	🐁 Save As New Revision		🞒 Check Out All 👻	Get Latest Version All	*	😽 Clear	Help
🔔 Log	out		🍓 Save As New Item					Cache Manager	(1) About
Login/	/Logout	Browsers	Save		C	heck-In/Out	Synchronize	Local Cache	Options

Figure 32. Teamcenter ribbon, part not saved in Teamcenter

By clicking on the *Save/Create* button, the Save Documents in Teamcenter window, as shown in Figure 33, will appear. In this window the item properties can be set. In Figure 33 on the left side the data involved in the saving session and their status is listed, in this case it is just one part. The Save Status is a red minus (\bigcirc) , that means the part is not ready to be saved. By hovering the mouse over the icon, a small window, as marked in Figure 33, will appear and displays what the problems are.

Save Documents in Teamcenter			- 0	×
👯 🤖 📩 Newstuff 🛛 🐴 😫 🐉				
S., Action Check In Status D Item ID R., Item Name	General Additional			
Null item revision name. Null item ID. Null revision.	Item type: * Item ID: * Asi Revision.* Asi Name: * Description: ^	▼ sign		
	File name.** Pat2jpt Folder:	•	Preview not available.	
	Library name: Library folder: << Apply Cancel	Reset	>>	
A second seco				_
One or more documents have not been validated. Move the cursor over the status icon to get more information.				
		Save	Cancel	

Figure 33. Save Documents in Teamcenter

Once these problems are fixed the Status will turn to a green plus () and the component can be saved.

The third column is the Status column which has three different statuses as shown in Table 1.

Table 1. Status icons

Icon	Status	Description
	Not in Teamcenter	Item has not been added to Teamcenter yet
	Checked in	Item is saved in Teamcenter
	Checked out by the current user	Item is being used by the current user

Dataset Type is the fourth column and indicates the kind of Inventor file. In Table 2 the basic types are shown.

lcon	Description	File Extension
TAI	Inventor Part	.itp
IAM	Inventor Assembly	.iam
	Inventor Drawing	.idw/.dwg
IPN	Inventor Presentation	.ipn

On the right side of the save window the properties can be set. This can be done either by assigning them automatically by clicking one of the *Assign* buttons marked in Figure 34 or by filling it out manually.

Save Documents in Teamcenter			— 🗆 ×
🕵 🧞 📩 Inventor 🎽 🎕 😫 🖉			
S. Action Check in Status D., tem D R. tem Name tem Rev. Name File Name News	eneral Additional Item Item Type: Item Item Item Item Item Item Item Item	Assign	
	Name: *		
	File name:" Pat2.pt Folder: Action: * Save Check In:	· ···	Preview not available.
	Part number: Is library: Library name:	*	
	Library folder:		
<	<< A;	pply Cancel Reset	»>
One or more documents have not been validated. Move the cursor over the status icon to get more information.			
		Save	Cancel

Figure 34. Save Documents in Teamcenter, Assign automatically

By clicking on the three dots next to the *Folder field*, possible folders to save the file in will appear to select from, as marked in Figure 35.

Save Documents in Teamcenter		1011			- 🗆 X
Save Documents in Teamcenter Folders	Name Home Malibox Newstuff SoleWoofs active workspac Inventor dateien	R. Tem Name Tem Rev. Name File Name Nev. Part2 let Part	General Additional Item type: ID: Revision* Name: Description: File name: Folder: Action: Check In: Part number: Is library: Library name: Library folder:	Item	Preview not available.
Cancel	ОК	> on.		<< Apply Cancel Reset	>> Cancel

Figure 35. Save Documents Teamcenter properties, Folder

If the part does not show up in the folder after it was saved, the folder can be refreshed by right-click on the folder and clicking *Refresh* in the drop-down menu, as marked in Figure 36. After that all files should be listed in the file tree again.



Figure 36. Refresh folder

3.2. Save As New Revision

To save a new revision of a part, drawing, presentation or assembly, the *Save As New Revision* command as marked in Figure 37 is executed.



Figure 37. Save As New Revision

In the Create New Revision on Teamcenter window (Figure 38) the name can be changed, as well as the Revision number, which will be automatically prefilled. If changes are made there, they must be confirmed with the *Apply* button before the part can be saved. A Description can also be written. The folder does not need to be selected, as the revision is saved in the same folder as the original part.

Create New Revision in Teamcenter				– 🗆 X
👯 🦣 📩 Inventor 🎽 🍕 😫 🐉				
S Action Check In Status D Item ID R Ite	General Additional			
S. Action Check In [Status]D. tem D R. Ite 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 € New Revision Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. 1 Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [Status]D. Image: Check In [S	General Additional Item type: ID: Revision: Name: Description: File name: Folder: Action: Folder: Action: Check In: Part number: Is library: Library folder:	Item cube 1.1 8 Coube 1.1 From Invertor cube 1_1 pt New Revision cube 1.1 cube 1.1 <	Assign Assign Assign	
			Save	Cancel

Figure 38. Create New Revision on Teamcenter

If the revision was made on a part of an assembly, next time the assembly is opened the question shown in Figure 39 will appear. This can be answered whether the assembly should also be updated or not.



Figure 39. Assembly update

3.3. Save As New Item

To copy a part and make a new item the *Save As New Item* button marked in Figure 40 is used.



Figure 40. Save As New Item

In the Create New Item in Teamcenter window the properties can be set as in the Save/Create process.

Appendix 2

Instructions for Siemens Teamcenter integration for SolidWorks



Nathalie Hagenauer

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	LOG I	N	57
2	FILE I	MANAGEMENT/OPEN FILES	59
	2.1	Open from Teamcenter	61
	2.2	Open files not saved in Teamcenter	62
	2.3	Make/save new part	64
	2.4	Place parts in assembly	66
3	SAVE	FILES	69

1. Log in

In Figure 41 the SolidWorks interface is shown. To log in to Teamcenter, click on number one to open the Teamcenter task pane and then number 2 or 3 to open the dialog window shown in Figure 42.



Figure 41. SolidWorks Teamcenter Interface logged out

After filling in Username and Password the user can click *Login*. The Group and the Role fields stay empty, and the Server is already chosen correctly, AMKTETC4-tier, as shown in Figure 42.

💆 Team	center Login	×
User:		0
Password:		
Group:		
Role:		
Server:	AMKTETC 4-tier 🗸	
	Login Cancel	

Figure 42. Teamcenter Login

If number 3 in Figure 41 was chosen to log in the window in Figure 43 will pop up, here nothing needs to be changed and the user can click *OK*.

💆 Теа	🔮 Teamcenter Change Group and Role 🛛 🗙					
User: nhagenau						
Group:	dba	~				
Role:	DBA	\sim				
Project:		~				
	OK Cancel					

Figure 43. Teamcenter Change Group and Role

Figure 44 shows the user interface after logging in. Number 1 is the Teamcenter Ribbon Bar, which is only displayed when a model is open, and number 2 shows the Teamcenter task pane.



Figure 44. Teamcenter interface

2. File Management/open files

In the Teamcenter task pane the user can choose between two different views. The Active Model view, shown in Figure 45 in which the information of the opened model are displayed and the Cache Manager view in which all components of the current workspace are listed (Figure 46). In the Cache Manger a view file management activities like checking for, and update, out of date models, deleting or purging files, copying files into, or out of the Workspace, and creating or deleting entire workspaces can be executed.



Figure 45. Active Model View



Figure 46. Cache Manager View

In the Cache manager different symbols indicate the status of the components in the current Workspace as listed in Table 1.

lcon	Status	Description
	In-session	Models are in session.
	New	The model does not yet exist in Teamcenter.
2	Modified	The model has been modified since last fetched.
3	New Dataset	A newer version of the model is available in Teamcenter.
	New Item	
3	Revision	A newer item revision is available in Teamcenter.
Q	Ambiguity	The model status in Teamcenter is uncertain.
	In Teamcenter	The user has the latest revision of a model.
1	Checked Out	Current user has checked out the model.
	Checkout	
13	Restricted	The model is checked out by another user.
¥88	Released	The model has a status.
		The local model was exported from a different revision than what is
1	Yield	being saved.

Table 1. Icon Status Symbols

2.1. Open from Teamcenter

To open a file from Teamcenter in SolidWorks the *Open* Symbol either in the Teamcenter menu or in the Teamcenter task pane, as marked in Figure 47 can be used.



Figure 47. Open Teamcenter files

This will open the Teamcenter Open window, where all data the user has access to will be listed as shown in Figure 48. When the user clicks on a part or assembly a preview and summary of the component will be shown on the right side.

Search						Summary	
Enter the Item ID to search			🔍 🔻 🗛	dvanced Search	++		<u> </u>
Object	Revision	Document	Checked Out?	Release Status			
	A					Item ID Model Name Item Type Revision Item Name Dataset Type Document	000074 000074 Item A cubeassSolidworks SolidWork assembly [SolidWork and 20007
Configure Filters ☑ Required						Checked Out? Release Status	
Revision Configuration Latest Working					~	<	>
Workspace						Options	
New Workspace Default Workspace					~	Open Mode:	Default 🗸 🗸

Figure 48. Teamcenter Open window

2.2. Open files not saved in Teamcenter

If the user wants to open a file which was not saved in the current workspace or in Teamcenter, it needs to be imported to Teamcenter first. This can be done with the *Import all SolidWorks files from a folder into the current workspace* () symbol marked in Figure 49. Then the Teamcenter Select Import Directory window will pop up (already open in Figure 49) and the user can choose the folder, which should be imported.



Figure 49. Import to current workspace

This can only be done while no file is opened in SolidWorks. Otherwise, the Alert shown in Figure 10 will appear and the user has to close the part before importing a folder.



Figure 50. Teamcenter open files Alert

Complementary to this, if a user wants to export files from the current workspace to a folder this can be done with the Copy all SolidWorks files from the current workspace to a folder symbol (^{S)}) next to the import symbol.

2.3. Make/save new part

If the user started working on a file, which was saved locally before logging in to Teamcenter, it needs to be imported to the current workspace before it can be saved to Teamcenter. How to do this is explained in chapter 2.2. If the user was logged in before making the new part Teamcenter will ask you if you want to manage the new file in Teamcenter with the window shown in Figure 51 and the user can decide.



Figure 51. Manage file in Teamcenter?

If the user clicks Yes Teamcenter New Window will open, where the user can manage the Required Properties, the Optional Properties of the file and can select the folder in Teamcenter where it should be saved, as shown in Figure 52. After checking and filling out all information the user clicks *Create*.

夑 Teamcenter New (nhagenau (nhagenau) - dba/DBA [IMC1252 🗙					
Required Properties					
Item Type Item 🗸					
Item ID Part1 New					
Item Revision A					
Item Name Part1					
Optional Properties					
Item Master ItemRevision ItemRevision Master Dataset					
From SolidMorter					
Description					
Folder Selection					
Workspace					
Current: Default Workspace					
Teamcenter Folder					
Team center \Home \Newstuff Browse					
Create Cancel					

Figure 52. Teamcenter New window

The Item ID can be auto generated by clicking *New* button next to it to generate the lowest possible ID which is not taken in Teamcenter yet. In the new Item ID is shown.

💆 Teamcente	er New (nhagenau (nhagenau) - dba/DBA [IMC1252 🗙
-Required Prop	erties
Item Type	Item 🗸
Item ID	000072 New
Item Revision	Α 💙
Item Name	cube

Figure 53. Item ID auto generated

2.4. Place parts in assembly

There are several possibilities to place a part in an Assembly. If the parts are open, the user can select them directly in the PropertyManager task pane on the left side, marked in Figure 54.

🕉 SOLIDWORKS 🔸 🏫 🗋	· 🕑 · 🗐 · 🖨 · ગ · 👌 · 🔋 🗐 🚳 ·	Assem1	Search Commands Q - 🛞 🥐	- 🕀 🗖 ×
Open Save Clone Cancel User Checkout Settings	🗟 🕡 Refresh About			
Assembly Layout Sketch Markup	Evaluate SOLIDWORKS Add-Ins MBD Teamcenter		>> Teamcenter Integration for SolidWorks	(i) 🖈
0	0 8 1 9 2 4 m . A. A			
🔫 📰 🔹 🔶 🤭		•		TEAMCENTER
Begin Assembly				TEAMCENTER
✓ × +		× D	Contract Con	• • × • • •
		28	7 files 7 files	
Select a component to insert, then place		@	Object *	Local Modi
it in the graphics area or hit OK to locate it at the origin.			Constant - Consta	
Or design top-down using a Layout		S	Assem2/A-smileyassembly1	
with blocks. Parts may then be created from the blocks.			Part1	26.4.2023 10.13.1
Create Layout			part2604 Smiley1/B	26.4.2023 10.15.3
Part/Accembly to locart			🖾 🧐 smileystand/A	
Open documents:				
000072				
6 000073				
Browse				
Thumbnail Preview 🗸				
Options ^				
Start command when creating new assembly				
Automatic Browse when creating new assembly				
Graphics preview				
Make virtual				
Envelope	*			
Show Rotate context toolbar	1			
				Colorida Char
	Thimship		Y Reset 📕 🗄 🕐 💌 🗠 🛄 💖 🔇	enter text to Juler
Model 3D Views Motion	on Study 1			
Left click to place the component or use Ta	b or the rotate menu to change its orientation		Fully Defined Editing Assembly	MMGS 🔹 🞯 🚊

Figure 54. place parts from PropertyManager

Or if you want to open part from the current workspace the user can click on Browse and the storage location of the Default Workspace will open where parts can be chosen, as shown in Figure 55.

						0
ganize · New folde	^					Baa 🖌 📊
Outet second	Name	Date modified	Type	Size		
Quick access	Admin	4.4.2023 13.19	File folder			
Desktop #	000072.SLDPRT	26.4.2023 14.06	SOLIDWORKS Part	77 KB		
Downloads *	# 000073.SLDPRT	26.4.2023 14.11	SOLIDWORKS Part	68 KB		
🗄 Documents 🛛 🖈	& Assem2.SLDASM	21.4.2023 17.55	SOLIDWORKS Ass	108 KB		
Pictures 🖈	Part1.SLDPRT	26.4.2023 10.13	SOLIDWORKS Part	72 KB		
Default Workspace	part2604.SLDPRT	26.4.2023 10.15	SOLIDWORKS Part	71 KB		
inventor	Smiley1.SLDPRT	21.4.2023 17.02	SOLIDWORKS Part	118 KB		
N	smileystand.SLDPRT	21.4.2023 17.54	SOLIDWORKS Part	92 KB		
≱ nauns mesis						
solidworks						
OneDrive						
This PC						
Network						
	Mode					
	Recolved Con	figuration: Default	Pafarancar			
			North Chever and			
	Disp	lay State: <default>_Display State ~</default>				
					0	uick Filter 🚯 🏟
					-	

Figure 55. Place part from Default Workspace

Another way to place parts in an assembly is by drag and dropping them out of the Teamcenter task pane into the assembly, shown in Figure 56.



Figure 56. Drag and drop part in assembly

if the user wants to place a part which is not saved in Teamcenter, the user needs to import the part first in the default workspace before being able to place it in the assembly. The warning shown in Figure 57 will appear if the part is not imported to the current workspace.



Figure 57. Part not in the Default Workspace warning

3. Save Files

Once the part, assembly, etc. the user is working on is part of the default Workspace or Teamcenter it can be saved by using one of the in fi marked symbols either in the Teamcenter task pane or in the Teamcenter menu in the ribbon bar.



Figure 58. Save options

4. Frequent Error

When the user creates a new model, the Teamcenter Alert in Figure 13 may show up. It says the creation failed because an input was not recognized as a valid DateTime. This error is caused by the Teamcenter when it cannot read the Time format of the computer.

Teamce	nter Alert X
\bigotimes	Creation of new model and Item ID failed String was not recognized as a valid DateTime.
	Close Details

Figure 59. Teamcenter Alert invalid DateTime

To solve the problem, the time format must be changed in German, Spanish (Mexivan) or Russian. The time format can be changed in the Computer Settings in the menu *Time and Language* \rightarrow *Date, time* & *regional formatting*. in here the Current format can be chosen out of a drop down list. After changing the format SolidWorks needs to be closed and opened again. This not only changes the time format, and language in the date of the computer, but also the language in SolidWorks to the chosen language. So after a component was saved, the time format can be changed back to the desired time format and language and restart SolidWorks to acknowledge the changes and it works normally again.

Appendix 3

Siemens Teamcenter Active Workspace



Nathalie Hagenauer

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	LOG IN	73
2	USER INTERFACE	74
3	FILE MANAGEMENT	78
1. Log in

On a school computer following link can be used to open Active workspace: http://amktetc01:3000/. The log in screen shown in Figure 60 will be loaded and the User Name and the Password can be filled in.



Figure 60. Active Workspace log in

2. User interface

In Figure 61 the user interface is shown. Number 1 marks the User settings interface, number 2 the navigation toolbar, number 3 is the work area and number 4 marks the search box.



Figure 61. Active Workspace user interface

User settings interface

By clicking on the Profile button, as marked in Figure 62, the user can see her or his role and group and can view and edit the user profile or sign out.



Figure 62. User Profile

Change Password

With the *Profile* command the user can access the profile settings. As marked in Figure 63 the password can be changed in *Manage* \rightarrow *Change Password*.

Home A	nhagenau				Q	SIEMENS
Home	Overview Audit Logs					*
Þ	✓ PROPERTIES			▼ PICTURE		Information
Active Folders	Name: User ID:	nhagenau nhagenau		0	⊕ Add ProfiL	Copen
Inbox	▼ FORWARD TASKS (OUT OF OFFIC	E)				10
Changes	Out of Office: Inbox Delegate: Unavailable From: Unavailable To:	no		DATA SHARE MANAGER Data Share Manager is installed on this device Use Data Share Manager on this device		Copy Paste A XK New
	✓ LOCATION					Edit
	Geography: User Declared Geography:				Change Passv	vord c _c Share
	▼ USER MEMBERSHIPS					View
 Settings 	Default Group: Default Volume:	dba				
0,	Group		Default Role			
Help Land No Active Change	dba 4					
۲	▼ MY SURROGATES					Ţ

Figure 63. Change Password

Navigation toolbar

The Navigation toolbar helps to navigate quickly through the workspace. In Table 3 the different commands and their descriptions are listed.

Table 3. Navigation toolbar Symbols

lcon	Description
e	Return to previous page.
Home	Return to homepage.
Folders	Open your home folder.
Active Folders	View and manage your active folders.
주 Favorites	View your favourites, recently opened objects, and projects where you are a member.
C Inbox	Access your inbox to view your tasks.
∠\ Changes	View or manage all changes.
戻 Quick Access	Quickly access your recently viewed objects, clipboard, content, and favourites.

Search box

With the search box, the user can search for parts, documents or other files and filter the results. The search box is displayed in every workspace.

Right wall command bar

Once the user has opened an object or a folder the right wall command bar, marked in Figure 64 will appear. Here the user can edit, manage, copy, etc. the selected object or folder. The command bar will stay the same, but the individual commands of the separate main commands differ, depending on the object the user is working on.

() Home	000063/B; Owner: rhagenau (rh	1-cube2 hagenau) Date Modified: 21	i-Apr-2023 Refease Status				ع ا) SIE	MENS
Home	Overview Content	Changes Where I	Used Attachments	History Participar	nts Audit Logs				
Folders	▼ USED IN STRUCTU	JRES							() Informatio
Folders	Configured by Global Re	rvision Rule : Latest Working	6						· []
Favorites	Item			Туре	Release Status	Owner		٢	÷
E lebox	600065/A;1-Cu	be23assembly		Item Kevision		nhagenau (nhagenau)			Cut
~									Copy
Changes									ß
Quick Access	Table						⊡+ Export To_	D Paste	Paste + 兴
	Object ·	Type ‡	Release Status 🗢	Date Released \$	Owner ‡			٢	New
									Edit
									1
	➡ REFERENCES								
	Table V= Selection	✓ Select All					□→ Baport	CB Patte	Share
	Object +	Type ‡	Release Status 🗢	Date Released \$	Owner \$			٢	Ven
	000063-cube2	Item			nhagenau (nhagenau)				
	000064/A;1	Item Revision			nhagenau (nhagenau)				
	7dS8AE3R94aG68	VisStructureContext			nhagenau (nhagenau)				
۵,									
Settings									
() Help									
A Active Change									

Figure 64. Right wall command bar

3. File management

By clicking either on the Folder Symbol in the navigation toolbar or in the work area, as marked in Figure 65, the user can show all data he/she has access to.



Figure 65. Opening Folder

In the Folders interface the folders are displayed on the left side (primary work area), and the information of the selected folder or file is presented on the right side (secondary work area). In Figure 66 the Inventor folder is selected and therefore all files saved in this folder are displayed in the secondary work area.

Cube1.1/A1- cube 1.1	Home (6 Objects) > Inventor > owner: nhagenau(nhagenau) Date Modified: 20-Ap	or-2023 Release Status: Type: H	ome Folder						۵	SIEM	IENS
Home	Navigate Overview Audit Logs										
Folders	ED List with Selection V Select All	Overview Audit Logs									0
Active Folders	SolidWorks	▼ PROPERTIES									Information
	Date Modified: 04-Apr-2023 14:07	Name:		Inventor							Open
	Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 20-Apr-2023 18:41	Description: Owner:		to import and export files from inv nhagenau (nhagenau)	entor						Gr.
inbox	Mailbox	Group ID:		dba							Copy
Changes	Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 04-Apr-2023 14:06	✓ CONTENTS									Paste
421 Quick Access	Inventor Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 21-Apr-2023 14:30	Table Selection Selection	et					G+ ^{Export}	🔁 Paste 🕀) Add to	New
	Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau)	Object ¢	Type ©	Checked-Out \$	Owner ¢	Group ID \$	Date Modified @	Release Status 🌣		٢	Edit
	Date Modified: 20-Apr-2023 18:56	000059/A;1-stoppel1	Item Revision		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	21-Apr-2023				Manage
	Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 04-Apr-2023 16:13	6 000063/B;1-cube2	Item Revision		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	21-Apr-2023				(α_0^0 Share
	Primary work area	6 000061/A;1-buttoncube1	Item Revision		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	21-Apr-2023				() View
	i mary work area										
				Secundary	work are	ea					
Settings											
⑦ • Help											
Change											

Figure 66. Folders Navigate

With the button marked in Figure 67 the listing of the content in the primary working area can be changed. In Figure 66 it was set to List with Summary, in Figure 67 to Tree with Summary, so that the content of the folders can be fold out and listed.

Search	Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Mode	fied: 29-Apr-2023 Release Status: Type: Home Folder						
Folders	Navigate Overview Audit Logs		1 600	Quantieur	Changer Who	relierd Attachmente His	toru Participante Audit Log	
Active	QU Summary → Mode → All	Description \$	Release 5 🛞	Overview	Changes whe	are used Attachments His	tory Participants Audit Log	s ()
Folders	👻 🚞 Home	nhagenau		▼ PROP	ERTIES	✓ GLOBAL ALTERN	✓ PREVIEW	· [[]
14 Invorites	✓ SolidWorks	for import and exporting solidwork files and documents for how to	d	ID: Revision:	000061 A	Table Add ana Add ana		÷
inbox	smileystand	made before logging in to teamcenter, afterwards safed to teamce	nt	Name:	buttoncube1	Object + 🛞		Cu
	Smileyassembly1	first assembly in solidworks		Description:	1. assembly Item Revision	<		Cop
Changes	Smiley1	From SolidWorks, new mouth and eye		Release	Nell'I Nevaluli			Ê
UICK Access	& pin	From SolidWorks for instructions		Status: Date				
	cubeassSolidworks	From SolidWorks for instructions		Released:				Nev
	Cube	for instructions		0	abaaaaa (abaaaaa)			t de
	Newstuff	nhagenau		Group ID:	dba			1.20
	✓ MES4	trying to export this data to mes4		Last Modifying	nhagenau (nhagenau))		
	teamcenter_import			User: Checked-Out				Shar
	5002			Checked-Out				(O
	Mailbox	nhagenau		By: Current				
	+ inventor	to import and export files from inventor		Location Code:				
Settings	000070	save as new item						
Help	🖏 stoppel1	stoppel and part of assembly buttoncube		▶ PROJE	CTS			
4 to Active	🚯 cube 1.1	try for instructions		> LICEN	SES			
Change	🚯 input							
	000064	saved as new item from cube2						

Figure 67. primary work area listing format change

By clicking twice on a file its information will be displayed in the secondary work area. In Figure 68 the *Overview* section of the selected part is shown, and the

secondary navigation tab is marked. With the help of this tab the user can display different information from the file.

0000065/A:1- Cube23asse	Home > SolidWorks (3 Objects) > smileystand/ Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Mostifiet 20 Apr-2023	A1 Revenue Status - Type Home Fader	۵	SIEMENS
C3 Home Folders	Navigate Overview Audit Logs In summary Selection Select smilleystand [2]	Overview Changes Where Used Attachments History Participants Audit Logs		() Information
Folders	Weinigstand weinigstand Weinigstand smillsystembly1 Revision: A smillsystembly1 Weinigstand smillsystembly1 Revision: A smillsystembly1 Revision: B smillsystembly1	D: smilipstad Revision: A Name: smilipstad Description: make before logings in the sense. Type: I men Revision Release State: I men Revision Date Release: I men Revision Date Release: I men Revision Oringe D: cha Last Modifying Use: nageneu (Mageneu) Cheaded Out By Cheaded Out By Cheaded Out By Cheaded Out By Cheaded Out By Cheaded Out By		日本 文字 文字 文字 文字 文字 文字 文字 文字 文字 文字
© Settings Help No Active Change		PROJECTS JUCENSES		vaer

Figure 68. Part Overview

For example, in the *Where Used* section, all other files in which this part is used are listed, as shown in Figure 69.

@ 000065/A:1- Cubre23asse.		Home > SolidWorks (3 Objects) > smileystand Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 20-Apr-3023	/A;1 Release Status: Type:)	lome folder					Q	SIEMENS
Home	Navig	gate Overview Audit Logs								
Folders	E Ust with Summ	Ith and the selection select All	Overview Chang	ges Where Used	Attachments History	Participants Aud	it Logs			0
Active Folders		smileystand 🗹		TURES						Information
立 Favorites	0~	 Revision: A 	Configured by Global	Revision Rule : Latest Wo	rking					Open offe
(C) Intes	A	smileyassembly1 Assem2 Revision: A	Item	-smileyassembly1		Type Item Revision	Release Status	Owner nhagenau (nhagenau)	6	Ca Do
	ç	smiley1 Smiley1 Revision: B	* CONTEXTS							Copy Charte
Quick Access			Tabie						Date To.	< XK New
			Object +	Type \$	Release Status 🗘	Date Released 🗘	Owner \$		Ę	B Edt
			▼ REFERENCES							Manage 0% Share
			Table Selecti Mode	on V Select All					Expert Dente	View
			Object 🔺	Type 🌣	Release Status 🗢	Date Released \$	Owner \$		ę	0
			Assem2	SolidWorks assembly			nhagenau (nhagenau)			
			Assem2/A-View	BOMView Revision			nhagenau (nhagenau)			_
			smileystand	Item			nnagenau (nnagenau)			-
 ⟨ĝ} + Settings 										
() •										
4										
No Active Change										
8										

Figure 69. Part Where Used

In the *Attachment* section the part itself can be downloaded with the download symbol marked in Figure 70. This symbol appears when the user moves the mouse over the part.

	Owner: nhagenau (nhagenau) Date Modified: 29	pr-2023 Release Status: Type: Home Folder	
	Navigate Overview Audit Logs		
91	Is Summary Selection Select Did Edit	Overview Changes Where Used Attachments History Participants Audit Logs	
1	Name 🕈 🛞	▼ FILFS	1
	✓ Home r	- S TINU	
	- SolidWorks f	III List 5=Selection Select All	G Paste ⊕ Add to
	smileystand [C] r	emilayetand	*
	a smileyassembly1 f	SolidWorks part	
	🌰 smiley1 🖇	Date Modified: 21-Apr-2023 17:54	
	🌡 pin 🕴		
	CubeassSolidworks F		
	💕 cube 🦸	▼ DOCUMENTS	
	Newstuff r		
	MES4 r	Uit -	To Chaste Add to
	Mailbox		
	Inventor t		
	dateien	- PERCENTE BU BOCHNENT	
	active workspace	✓ DESCRIBED BY DOCUMENT	
	dente monspace	III list	Byport The Paste ⊕ Add to
	steri	· · ·	
	stari		
	part2004		
	AWP2	▼ DRAWING SOURCE FOR	
	AWP1 p		

Figure 70. Part Attachments section

In the *History* section of the file, all revisions of the file are listed as marked in Figure 71. Here all versions can be downloaded separately.

C H	000063/B;1-cul Owner: nbagenau (nbagenau)	De2 Date Modified: 21-Apr-20	23 Refease Status: Ty	pe: item Revision					D SIEM	MENS
Home	Overview Content Cha	anges Where Used	Attachments Histo	ory Participants	Audit Logs					
	✓ REVISION HISTORY									i
Folders	Table S=Selection Sel	ect							B+ toport CB Paste	[] Open
Favorites	Object ¢	Release Status ¢	Date Released ¢	Owner ¢	Date Modified 👻				٢	8 ⁶
inber:	000063/B;1-cube2			nhagenau (nhagenau)	21-Apr-2023					Cut
	🚯 000063/A;1-cube2			nhagenau (nhagenau)	21-Apr-2023					Сору
B										Paste
CALICK ACCESS										- 22
									Brant B Parte	. 0
	Solution Item 0	Impacted Item ©	Authorizing Change	Closure 0	Maturity 0	Disposition ©	Incorporates Chang	Incorporated into 0	Incorporated Statu 🛞	cot
										Manage
										(a ₀ 0
										Share
										View
 Settings 										
() + Help										
4										
Change										
8										

Figure 71. Part History section

Import files

As marked in Figure 72, by clicking on the new command in the Right wall command bar, a drop-down menu will appear, in which the *Add* command can be selected.

Home	Navigate Overview Audit Logs								
Folders	Ball Tree with Selection Summary ✓= Selection ✓ Select All Ø Edit	Overview Audit Lo	ogs						0
Active	Name ¢								Informat
-J.	✓ Home	n							([C
Favorites	- SolidWorks	fc Name:		Home					q£
	smileystand	n Owner:		nhagenau nhagenau (nhagenau)					Cut
A	8 smileyassembly1	fi Group ID:		dba					Com.
Changes	smiley1	F							ſħ
D Nick Access	👗 pin	F CONTENTS							Paste
	cubeassSolidworks	F			Ado	a new or existing object	to this location	🕀 Add	· 米 New
	Cube	Table 3 = Selection fc	V All			a new or exacting object	10 0113 100000011	∠∂ Create Change	10
	Newstuff	Object \$	Type ¢	Checked-Out ¢	Owner ¢	Group ID ¢	Date Mod	Import Structure	Edit
	MESA	SolidWorks	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	26-Apr-20	Import Active Folder	Manag
		Newstuff	Newstuff Folde	r	nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	20-Apr-20a	.5	1 ~
		MES4	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	29-Apr-202	13	Share
	> Inventor	Mailbox	Mail Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	04-Apr-202	3	+ () View
	> dateren	Inventor	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	25-Apr-202	13	
æ.	active workspace	h dateien	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	20-Apr-202	13	
Settings	star1	active workspace	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba	29-Apr-202	13	
0	star1		4						×
nep	part2604								
All No Active	AWP2								
	AWP1	P							
8		()•							

Figure 72. Add command

In the add command the user can choose what kind of object the user wants to create, as shown in Figure 73.

Add ^{-;;; Pin} Panel	X Close
New Palette Search	(C
ТҮРЕ	î *
RECENT	Copy
Folder	Paste
Document	《 头矢 New
📦 Part	1 D Edit
OTHER	(🎘 Manag
Filter	(oco Share
a Active Folder	(O View
🚯 Arc Weld	
🚯 CAEAnalysis	
🚳 CAEGeometry	
🚯 CAEModel	
CAEResult	
Cable Resource	Ţ

Figure 73. Add choose object type

To make a new folder the user selects Folder from the list shown in Figure 73. As shown in Figure 74. A Name must be assigned and a Description can be added. The folder will be saved in the folder where the user is currently located.

Navigate Overview Audit Logs									
$\label{eq:selection} \begin{tabular}{ll} \begin{tabular}{ll} I \end{tabular} & \begin{tabular}{ll} \begi$	Overview Audit Logs					Add		⊐ ^{Pin} Panel	× Close
Name •	· PROPERTIES				10				
✓ Home r						New Palette	Search		
✓ SolidWorks	Name:	Hor	ne			FOLDER			
🐜 smileystand r	Owner:	nha	genau (nhagenau)						
smileyassembly1 f	Group ID:	dba				PROPERTIES			
Smiley1 F						Name: *			
1 pin F						Required			
CubeassSolidworks F						Description:			
in cube	Table 3= Selection	Select All							
Neurtoff .	Object \$	Type ¢	Checked-Out ©	Owner ¢	Gro				//
	SolidWorks	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba				
	Newstuff	Newstuff Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba				
Mailbox	MES4	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba				
Inventor t	Mailbox	Mail Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba				
dateien	Inventor	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba				
active workspace	dateien	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba				
star1	active workspace	Folder		nhagenau (nhagenau)	dba				
star1		4							
part2604									
AU/02									

Figure 74. Add Folder

If the user wants to create a new file, he or she chooses the correct file type and with the *Choose file* button, as marked in Figure 75, or by drag and dropping, the user can add a file from the local drive.

\dd	-(⊐ ^{Pin} Panel	
New Palette Search		
DOCUMENT		
ID. *		
000079		
Revision: *		
A		
Name: *		
Required		
Description:		
		1
Document Title:		
Document Author:		_
Document Subject:		
Workflow:		//
FILE ATTACHMENTS		
Drop here Choose file		
OWNING PROJECT		
PROJECTS		
H Add Project		

Figure 75. Add Document

Note: A new file can also be added by drag and dropping it directly into the desired folder.